MINUTES OF THE 26TH MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF CENTRAL COUNCIL OF HOMOEOPATHY HELD ON 27.05.2019 AT NEW DELHI.

PRESENT

1.	Sh. Nilanjan Sanyal	-	Chairperson
2.	Dr. Anil Kumari Malhotra	-	Member
3.	Dr. Anil Khurana	-	Member
	Dr. Kumar Vivekanand	-	Secretary

Dr. D. Samba Murthy, Inspector was present to assist the Secretary during the meeting.

Agenda item No. 1

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 25th meeting of the Executive Committee of Board of Governors held on 22.05.2019 at New Delhi.

The Executive Committee confirmed the Minutes of its 25th meeting held on 22.05.2019 at New Delhi as circulated.

Agenda item No. 2

Action taken Report on the minutes of the 25th of Executive Committee of Board of Governors held on 22.05.2019 at New Delhi.

The Executive Committee noted the Action taken by the office of the Council on the Minutes of the 24th meeting of Executive Committee of Board of Governors of Central Council of Homoeopathy held on 22.05.2019 at New Delhi.

Agenda item No. 3

i= la-SSHM@233 fnukad 21-05-2019 eSusftax V^aLVh] tu fodkl U;kl, □hryk lgk; gksE;ksiSfFkd fpfdRlk egkfo|ky; ,oa शाs/k laLFkku] Xokfy;j] e/; izns□ ls l= 2019&20 dh ekU;rk gsrqA

The Executive Committee considered the request of the trust of the college regarding non-inspection of college for the 2019-20 and agreed to the same. Accordingly, the college will not be permitted to admit students. Existing students, if any, may be transferred to other private colleges under the same university.

Agenda item No. 4

Inspection of Existing Homoeopathic Medical Colleges.

Sl.	Name of the College	Course(s)	Date of	Report	Report	Remarks
No.		run/intake capacity	Inspection	Dispatched	received in	
				on	CCH on	
1.	Venutai Yashwantrao Chavan Homoeopathic Medical College, 2968 "C", Dasara Chowk, Kolhapur -416002.	B.H.M.S.(50)	14.05.19	14.05.19	20.05.19	Not recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 due to low IPD functioning, eligible staff as per attendance register is 19 (01 post 2017 lecturer with BHMS and 1

						 Reader has not signed attendance register & 3 Lecturers have not signed from 11.04.2019) as well as other shortfall as per details in inspection report. Deficiencies reflected in the report of inspection are as under: No higher faculty in Anatomy, Physiology and Materia medica. Teaching staff list shows 37 teachers including FT and GF, attendance register shows 24 Fulltime (03 Professor, 05 Readers, 16 Lecturers) and acquittance roll shows 31 Faculty but no demarcation of GF/FT and cadre. O1 Reader Dr. V.M. Ghevde and 03 Lecturers, Dr. N.G. Aironi, Dr. J.R. Nalawade and Dr Pawase has no signature from 11th April in attendance register. O6 Faculty without MD (Hom) out of which 01 Lecturer with Date of appointment in 2017. O2 Nursing Staff are available against the requirement of 03
						 against the requirement of 04 in Hospital. 04 Software available against the requirement of 05 in dept. of Repertory.
2.	Smt. S. M. Deo Homoeopathic Medical College & Hospital, Sardar Patel Campus Gaykhuri, Balaghat, Distt. Balaghat –481 001.	B.H.M.S.(50)	15.05.19	16.05.19	20.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 50 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course subject to appointment of higher faculty in Repertory and 02 guest faculties as well as fulfilling other shortfalls as per inspection report before commencement of new session.
3.	Mahalaxmi Homoeopathy Medical College, S. No.259 At. Post Raigaon, Tal. Jaoli, Distt. Satara-415020. MS	B.H.M.S. 60	16.05.19	16.05.19	20.05.19	Not recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 as only 11 full time are shown in acquittance roll of which 01 with PhD in

4.	Mahatma Gandhi Homoeopathic Medical College & Hospital, Neemkheda, Gour Tiraha, (Mandla Road) Opp. Marble Rock School, Jabalpur-482001	B.H.M.S. 100	15.05.19	16.05.19	20.05.19	Biochemistry is not eligible, against requirement of 18 (for up to 2 nd yr.). The existing students may be transferred to other private colleges under the same university. Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course subject to fulfilment of minor shortfalls of instruments in hospital as per inspection report before
5.	Sonajirao Kshirsagar Homoeopathic Medical College, Beed, Maharashtra	BHMS (100) MD (Hom) Organon- 06 Pharmacy-06 Mat. Medica-06 Practice of Medicine- 06 Repertory-06 Pediatrics-06 Psychiatry-06	14.05.19	15.05.19	20.05.19	commencement of new session. Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course and MD(Hom) course in Organon, Pharmacy, Repertory, Paediatrics and Psychiatry with 04 seats in each and Materia Medica & Practice of Medicine with 06 seats each, subject to appointment of required guest faculty before commencement of new session.
6.	Naiminath Homoeopathic Medical College, Hospital & Research Centre, Village Nawalpur, Tehsil Etmadpur, Agra 283200.	B.H.M.S.(100) M.D.(Hom.) Organon-06 Mat. Medica-06 Repertory-06 Practice-06 Paediatrics-06 Pharmacy -06	14.05.19	14.05.19	21.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course and MD(Hom) course in Organon with 03 seats and in Pharmacy, Materia medica, Practice of medicine, Repertory and Paediatrics, with 04 seats in each.
7.	District Homoeopathic Medical College and Hospital, 478, Katju Nagar, Ratlam – 457001	BHMS-100 MD (Hom) Mat. Medica-03 Practice of Medicine -03	14.05.19	15.05.19	21.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 60 seats only in the existing UG (BHMS) course as eligibility of 09 Lecturers are doubtful in absence of date of appointment. Also recommended for admissions in MD(Hom) course in the subject of Materia Medica and Practice of Medicine with 03 seats in each.

8.	Merchant Homoeopathic Medical College, Merchant Education Campus, Mehsana- Visnagar Highway, At. Gadha& P.O. Basna, Mehsana-384 315.	B.H.M.S.(100)	14.05.19	14.05.19	21.05.19	 Not recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 due to lack of Professor & Reader in Practice of Medicine and Repertory and no higher faculty in Community medicine and as there are only 07 Guest faculty against 12 and since the college is to be continued to 3rd year, as well as other deficiencies as per details in Inspection Report. Further, second year students going to third year may be transferred to other private colleges under the same university. Deficiencies reflected in the report of inspection are as under: 24 Fulltime available against the requirement of 28 and 07 Guest Faculty in Professor Cadre against the requirement of 12 and 03 Faculties are having DHMS/BHMS qualification without any date of appointment to verify their eligibility. No Professor and Reader in Practice of Medicine and Repertory. No higher faculty in Community Medicine.
						 Mummified bodies not available in Dept. of Anatomy. Models not available in Dept. of Pathology. Total Number of Specimens of Vegetables not reported in Dept. of Pharmacy.
9.	Panchsheel Homoeopathic Shikshan Prasarak Mandal's Homoeopathic Medical College, Civil Lines, Kelanagar, Khamgaon- 444 303, Buldana, Maharashtra.	B.H.M.S.(100) MD(Hom) Organon- 03 Mat. Medica-03 Repertory-03 Paediatrics-03 Practice of Medicine-03	16.05.19	17.05.19	21.05.19	Not recommended for allowing admission in existing UG and PG course/s for the session 2019-20 due to overage of 02 Professor in UG and 01 Professor in PG and 07 faculty members' eligibility being doubtful due to absence of date of appointment, as well as grave doubts about functioning of IPD and Hospital and other shortfalls as per details in inspection report. Deficiencies reflected in the report of inspection are as under:

r	1		
			• 04 GF (02 Prof, 02 Readers)
			available against the
			requirement of 12.
			• As per teaching staff list for UG
			32 FT & 06 GF and for PG 11
			FT available, but as per
			acquittance, 31 FT available and
			07 faculty with BHMS/DHMS
			without any date of appointment
			& details of previous experience
			for verification.
			• One FT Prof in Pathology with
			DHMS DoB 02.02.1953 found
			overage. One FT Prof Surgery
			DoB 05.05.1954 (65 yrs)
			· · · ·
			DHMS, 01 FT professor in
			Pharmacy DHMS DoB
			15.10.1954 and 01 FT Professor
			in Organon in PG department
			with DoB 06.10.1953 (66 yrs).
			• USG not available, O.T. and
			Preparation Room available but
			not working, Post Operative
			recovery room and space for
			sterilized linen not available,
			Labour room, Surgeon room
			and nursing staff room available
			but not in good condition,
			Hospital Kitchen not available
			and Rehabilitation unit of yoga
			not available in Hospital.
			• Required no. of Resident
			Medical Officer, Dispenser,
			Dresser, Nursing staff and Ward
			Boys/Aya, Yoga expert,
			Dietician, Physiotherapist not
			available in hospital
			• No Medical record room
			available and staff for
			cleanliness, laundry, hospital
			catering, watch and ward duties
			none of them available in
			hospital.
			• Only one Librarian assistants
			available against 02 in central
			library.
			-
			U
			available in hospital equipment.
			• Visitors have reported that OPD
			records are not authentic and
			IPD cases do not match with
			records provided by the college.
LL	•	I	

10.	Pourvi Shikshan Prasarak Mandal's Mahila Homoeopathic Medical College, Kolgiri Nagar, Hotgi Road, Majrewadi, Solapur- 413225.	BHMS 100	14.05.19	14.05.19	21.05.19	 Consultants of modern medicines were not present during the day of inspection. Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course.
11.	Jay Jalaram Homoeopathic Medical College, At & Post Morva (Rena), Takula Shahera, Distt. Panchmahal-389001.	BHMS(100 seats)	14.05.19	15.05.19	21.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course and continuation from 2 nd to 3 rd BHMS.

Agenda Item No.5.1

Inspection of Existing Homoeopathic Medical College.

Sl.	Name of the College	Course(s)	Date of	Report	Report	Remarks
No.		run/intake capacity	Inspection	Dispatched	received in	
				on	CCH on	
1.	Konkan Education & Medical Trust's Virar Homoeopathic Medical College, Veer Savarkar Marg, Virar, Tal.Vasai, Dist. Thane-401305.	BHMS (75)	15.05.19	16.05.19	22.05.19	 Not recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 as eligibility of 09 teachers are doubtful in absence of date of appointment and no Professor or Reader being appointed in Repertory. Deficiencies reflected in the report of inspection are as under: No Fulltime Professor and Reader in Department of Repertory, Attendance Register of the Teaching and Non-Teaching Staff not available. Qualification of Principal is LECH with DoB 08.11.1954 and 09 Teachers without PG and date of appointment is not mentioned.
2.	Shri Chamundamata	BHMS (50)	15.05.19	16.05.19	22.05.2019	Recommended for allowing
2.	Homoeopathic Medical College & Hospital, 9, 10, 11 Gayatri Nagar Telephone &Parakh Nagar, JillhaPeth, Jalgaon-	BHIMS (30)	15.05.19	16.03.19	22.03.2019	admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 50 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course subject to USG facility being available in the hospital or on MoU basis, before commencement of new session.

	Durdenen Herresensthie	DIDAC(50)	14.05.19	17.05.19	22.05.19	Recommended for allowing
3.	Burdwan Homoeopathic Medical College and	BHMS (50)	14.03.19	17.03.19	22.03.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for
	U					
	Hospital, NimbarakBhavan Raj					the session 2019-20 with the intake
						capacity of 50 seats in existing UG
	Ganj P.O. Nutanganj,					(BHMS) course subject to
	Distt. Burdwan-71					fulfilment of shortfall as per details
						of inspection report before
						commencement of new session.
						Deficiencies reflected in the
						inspection report as under:
						• Ambulance not available in
						Hospital.
						• Dark Room attendant not
						available in Hospital staff.
						• DVDs and Films not available,
						Wire gouge with Asbestos,
						Central Hot Plate and Flask not
						available in dept. of
						Physiology.
						Homoeopathic Practitioners
						(Professional Conduct,
						Etiquette and Code of Ethics)
						Regulations, 1982 not available
						in dept. of FMT.
						_
4.	Sagar Homoeopathic	B.H.M.S.(50)	16.05.19	17.05.19	20.05.19	Not recommended for allowing
	Medical College &					admission in I-BHMS Course for
	Hospital Research					the session 2019-20 due to doubtful
	Centre, Namak Mandi,					strength of teaching faculty, Date of
	Sagar					Appointment not mentioned for all
						25 teachers including 11 lecturers
						to establish their eligibility, lack of
						infrastructure in hospital, as,
						Operation theatre, X-ray, ECG,
						Preparatory room, Post. Operative
						room, space for sterilized linen,
						labour room, surgeon room, nursing
						staff room are all available on MoU
						basis. Deficiencies reflected in the
						report of inspection are as under:
						• 03 teachers with DHMS and 21
						teachers with BHMS with no
						details of appointment and
						teaching experience available.
						 X-ray, ECG available but non
						functional, USG, OT,
						Preparatory room, Post op
						room, Space for sterilized linen,
						100m, space for stermized milell,
						_
						labor room, Surgeon room and
						labor room, Surgeon room and Nursing staff room are under
						labor room, Surgeon room and Nursing staff room are under MoU in hospital.
						labor room, Surgeon room and Nursing staff room are under

						 Obstetrician and Gynecologist, Pathologist, Dresser reported as on call against full time. Required Ward Boys not available in hospital staff. Required Library assistant not available in Central Library. Skeleton articulate not mentioned in dept. of Anatomy. Stethograph/ pneumograpph Nil against 05 in Dept. of Physiology. Thin layer chromatography and Homoepathic Pharmacopoeias not available in the Dept. of Pharmacy. Charts and Books on History of Medicine not reported in Dept. of Organon.
5.	Shri Gujarati Samaj Shrimati Kamlaben Raoji Bhai Patel Gujarati Homoeopathic Medical College Hospital Research Centre, Sch.No.54A.B. Road, Indore	BHMS-100	21.05.19	21.05.19	23.05.19	 Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course subject to fulfilment of shortfalls in hospital equipment as per details of inspection report before commencement of new session. The deficiencies in the Inspection report are as under: Distribution of bed not as per MSR in Hospital. Required Stretcher with trolley, oxygen cylinder with stand and Diagnostic ENT set not available in the Hospital. 02 ESR (westergren/wintrobe) available against the requirement of 04 in dept. of Pathology.
6.	Shree Chotalal Nagindas Kothari Homoeopathic Medical College and Research Centre, Near Van Chetna, Kakrapar Bye Pass, Tadkuva, Vyara, Dist. Surat	BHMS-100	21.05.19	21.05.19	23.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course.

7.	Sri Ganganagar Homoeopathic Medical College & Research Institute, Hanumangarh Road, Sriganganagar- 335002. Rajasthan	BHMS (100) Organon -05 Mat. Med -05 Repertory -05 P M -05 Psychiatry -05 Pediatrics -05	21.05.19	22.05.19	22.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 100 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course and MD(Hom) course in the subjects of Organon, Materia Medica, Repertory, Practice of Medicine, Psychiatry and Paediatrics with 05 seats each.
8.	Disha Shikshan-V-Vikas Kendra's E.B. Gadkari Homoeopathic Medical College, 1830/A/B, Kadgaon Road, Opposite Govt. Rest House, Gadhinglaj, Dist. Kolhapur-	BHMS (50)	14.05.19	15.05.19	22.05.19	Deferred for next meeting due to non availability of 2 nd inspection report.
9.	Bengal Homoeopathic Medical College and Hospital, Asansol, West Bengal	BHMS (50)	14.05.19	-	21.05.2019	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 50 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course subject to availability of functional ambulance in hospital before commencement of new session.
10.	Anushree Homoeopathic Medical College,112, Near Samdariya Green City , Kashodhan Nagar, Madhotal, Jabalpur (M.P.)-482 002.	BHMS (50)	15.05.19	15.05.19	22.05.19	Recommended for allowing admissions in I-BHMS Course for the session 2019-20 with the intake capacity of 50 seats in existing UG (BHMS) course.

Agenda Item No.5.2

Application dated 28.02.2019 of the Chairman, G. Anuradha Education Trust, Bangalore for establishment of New Homoeopathic Medical College namely Anuradha Homoeopathic Medical College & Hospital at Bangalore, Karnataka for BHMS Course under section 12 A of HCC Act, 1973, from the academic session 2019-20 in compliance of order dated 13.08.2018 of the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka in W.P. No.47279-47280/2018[EDN-REG.P]

The Executive Committee noted the submitted documents of the Trust, required for consideration of application for LoI and agreed to the same.

Agenda Item No.5.3

A letter dated 27.05.2019 has been received from Vice-Chancellor, Babasaheb Bhimrao Ambedkar Bihar University, regarding relax the sub Regulation 4A under the provision of 14(iii) of B.H.M.S. Regulation 1983 (amended up to March 2016).

The Executive committee discussed the matter threadbare in respect of request of BBRA Bihar University regarding relaxation of sub Regulation 4A of BHMS regulation 1983 (amended up to 2016). The Committee decided to seek clarification with regard to delay of implementation of provision 4A, when it was notified in gazette on 14th July, 2015. It is presumed that university has not taken any examination of

any homoeopathic college under the same university for the session 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18, and if so, the University may certify not conducting any examination in respect of students admitted in any homoeopathic college under it during the sessions 2015-16 to 2017-18.

The Executive Committee directed the office to complete the actions on the decisions in these minutes immediately, keeping in view of urgency of the matters.

Meeting ended with the vote of thanks to the Chair.

Sd/-(Dr. Kumar Vivekanand) Secretary

Attested

Sd/-

(Sh. Nilanjan Sanyal) Chairperson